
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
TUESDAY, 3 JUNE 2025 AT 3.00 PM  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 22 April 2025  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4.   Petition - Divest from Israel and Stop Support for Genocide  (Pages 7 - 12) 
Report by the Chief Finance Officer and the Chief Operating Officer 
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 23 May 2025 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Manager,  
01273 337495 
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts 
 
 

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 22 April 2025 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

75. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 31 MARCH 2025  

 

75.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 31 
March 2025. 

 

76. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

76.1 There were none. 

 

77. URGENT ITEMS  

 

77.1 There were none. 

 

78. REPORTS  

 

78.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

79. SANDBANKS, 1 CACKLEBURY CLOSE, HAILSHAM - DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD  

 

79.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

DECISIONS 
 
79.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Declare Sandbanks, 1 Cacklebury Close, Hailsham (the Property) to be surplus to the 
requirements of the Council; 
 
2) Approve the disposal of the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 
1972; 
 
3) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale to achieve 
best value for the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
including proceeding with the next best offer(s) in the event of the transaction(s) not completing 
within the expected timelines; and 
 
4) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary to give effect to 
the recommendations in the report. 
 
REASONS 
 
79.3 The Council has no ongoing operational use for the Property. The Property is surplus to 
the Council’s requirements and the disposal of it will reduce revenue liabilities relating to the 
management and holding costs of this surplus asset, as well as providing the Council with a 
capital receipt. 
 
79.4 Delegation to the Chief Operating Officer authority to agree the terms of the sale to 
achieve the best consideration for the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, including authority to proceed with the next best offer(s) in the event of 
the transaction(s) not completing within the expected timelines and to take all actions necessary 
to give effect to the recommendations in the report will facilitate the effective disposal of the 
Property. 

 

80. RYE BAY PROJECT OFFICE, RYE - DISPOSAL OF FREEHOLD  

 

80.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
80.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Declare Rye Bay Project Office, Rye (the Property) to be surplus to the requirements of the 
Council; 
 
2) Approve the disposal of the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 
1972; 
 
3) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to agree the terms of the sale to achieve 
best value for the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
including proceeding with the next best offer(s) in the event of the transaction(s) not completing 
within the expected timelines; and 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 
4) Delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to take all actions necessary to give effect to 
the recommendations in the report. 
 
REASONS 
 
80.3 The Council has no ongoing operational use for the Property. The Property is surplus to 
the Council’s requirements and the disposal of it will reduce revenue liabilities relating to the 
management and holding costs of this surplus asset, as well as providing the Council with a 
capital receipt. 
 
80.4 Delegation to the Chief Operating Officer authority to agree the terms of the sale to 
achieve the best consideration for the Property in accordance with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, including authority to proceed with the next best offer(s) in the event of 
the transaction(s) not completing within the expected timelines and to take all actions necessary 
to give effect to the recommendations in the report will facilitate the effective disposal of the 
Property 

 

81. PLAYING FIELD ADJACENT TO THE TILLING GREEN COMMUNITY CENTRE, RYE  

 

81.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
81.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Approve that the Council commence consultation under Section 123(2A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to dispose of the playing field adjacent to the Tilling Green Community 
Centre, Rye (the site); and 
 
2) Note that the responses will be considered at a future Lead Member meeting, where it will 
then be decided if the Playing Fields should be disposed of. 
 
REASONS 
 
81.3 The site is allocated for housing in the Rye Neighbourhood Plan. Disposing of the site at 
a future date may therefore result in a capital receipt. However, in accordance with the Council’s 
obligations under Section 123 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council must first 
advertise its intention to dispose of the site and consider any objections. 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Report to: Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

Date of meeting: 3 June 2025  

By: Chief Operating Officer and Chief Finance Officer 

Title: Petition – Divest from Israel and Stop Support for Genocide. 

Purpose: To consider the petition that seeks the County Council to divest 
from Israel and stop support for genocide. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to advise the petitioners: 

(1) that the East Sussex Pension Fund has an agreed position regarding investments as 
detailed in Appendix 1; and 

(2) to note the limitations on the Council in respect of procurement and termination of 
contracts as set out in paragraphs 2.8 to 2.12 of this report. 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

1. Background 
 

1.1 At the County Council meeting on 20 March 2025, a petition was presented to the Chairman by 
Councillor Hilton on behalf of the Hastings and District Palestine Solidarity Campaign. 

 
1.2 The petition specifically requests that East Sussex “divest the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(LGPS) and end procurement contracts, with companies enabling Israel’s grave violations of 
Palestinian rights.” 

 
1.3 Standing Orders provide that where the Chairman considers it appropriate, petitions are considered 

by the relevant Committee or Lead Member and a spokesperson for the petitioners is invited to 
address the meeting. The Chairman has referred this petition to the Lead Member for Resources and 
Climate Change. A copy of the petition is available in the Members’ Room. 

 
2. Supporting Information 
 

East Sussex Pension Fund (The Fund) Investment 
 

2.1 In managing the East Sussex Pension Fund (the Fund), members of the Pension Committee are subject 
to a fiduciary duty. This requires them to act in the best interests of the Fund’s beneficiaries, and to 
make decisions that are reasonable, rational and impartial. Pursuant to this fiduciary duty, the primary 
aim of the Fund is to provide pension benefits for members and their beneficiaries when they fall due. 
To do this, the Fund invests to secure the best financial return for its members, balancing risk and 
return. The power of investment must be exercised for investment purposes, and not for any wider 
purposes. The Fund takes a risk-based approach in setting and implementing its investment strategy. 
 

2.2 The Fund publishes its Investment Strategy Statement, which includes the Responsible Investment 
Strategy and Funding Strategy Statement, on its website, which clearly lays out the approach of the 
Fund when investing. The Fund also engages with its fund managers and with companies through 
collaborative engagement. 

 
2.3 The Pension Committee issued a statement in July 2022 relating to the Fund’s exposure to the 

companies flagged by United Nations Human Rights Office of the High Commissioner’s (“OHCHR”) 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

https://www.eastsussexpensionfund.org/media/w5eb04uz/investment-strategy-statement-rebalancing-and-srip-2023.pdf
https://www.eastsussexpensionfund.org/media/x4lpeopm/funding-strategy-statement-revised-june-2023.pdf


 
 

 

 

A/HRC/37/39 Report as part of the Fund’s stewardship responsibilities to consider the operational 
impact on labour and other human rights issues, which can affect long term financial return of a 
company. This statement is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
2.4 Whilst the Fund has Investment Strategy objectives, it cannot dictate the underlying holdings of an 

Investment Manager. Practically, on a day-to-day basis, the Fund does not have sight of any investment 
transactions made by  an Investment Manager, or what is owned on any given day. Responsibility for 
day-to-day interaction with companies is delegated to the Fund’s investment managers, including the 
escalation of engagement when necessary.  

2.5  Investment managers have a mandate to deliver investment returns within a specific asset class and 
will regularly change the underlying assets or holdings within the portfolio. As the Fund is directed by 
Government to pool its investments, it does not set the parameters of the investment mandate and 
cannot intervene in any sale or purchase within a portfolio. As a result, to remove any specific 
investment exposure to a company or group of companies, the Fund would need to sell the entire 
investment manager position and procure and invest in segregated mandates. 

2.6  The Fund recognises that Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (‘ESG’) issues can have 
 a material impact on the long-term performance of its investments. Investors have a role in shaping and 
influencing company actions relating to human rights bringing the “S” of ESG into focus. “Social”
 performance of companies considers the operational impact on labour and other human rights issues 
 of people and communities in which it engages.  

2.7  The Fund is an active member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), which carries out 
engagement on behalf of the member funds. The Fund is supportive of the LAPFF position on the 
occupied territories, which seeks to encourage companies operating in that jurisdiction to review and 
have regard for the human rights of all individuals with whom they interact in the conduct of their 
operations.  

Procurement and Termination of contracts 

2.8 Public Sector contracts are legally binding agreements.  Generally, the Council will only be permitted 
to terminate such arrangements where it can rely on a contractual clause permitting it to do so or if 
there is another legal basis for doing so, for example, where the other party has committed a 
repudiatory breach. External factors unrelated to the performance of the contract will not, unless 
expressly stated in the contract, give rise to a ground for termination. If the Council were to terminate 
one or more existing contracts without a valid legal right to do so (whether under the contract or 
common law) this could amount to a repudiatory breach of contract, exposing the Council to the risk 
of damages claims being made against it.  
 

2.9 Procurement Policy Note (PPN) 01/22, issued by the Government following the Russian invasion of 
Ukraine encourages in-scope organisations to review their contract portfolio and consider terminating 
contracts with Russian or Belarusian suppliers following the imposition of financial and investment 
sanctions by the Government. However, the PPN states that this should only be considered where the 
contract includes “suitable, commercially acceptable termination provisions” and where “an alternative 
supplier can be sourced in line with value for money, affordability and with minimal disruption to public 
services.” This re-enforces that, even where government sanctions have been imposed, the Council 
still needs a valid legal basis for terminating an existing contract. 

 
2.10 If the Council were to terminate works, services or supply contracts as suggested by the petition, it 

would of course need to re-procure these services from alternative suppliers. However, section 17 of 
the Local Government Act 1988 prohibits local authorities from excluding suppliers for public 

supply or works contracts (i.e. contracts for the provision of goods, services or works) based on “non-
commercial matters”. An organisation’s political affiliations would be viewed as a non-commercial 

Page 8



 
 

 

 

matter for this purpose, making it unlawful for the Council to refuse to contract with a supplier purely 

on this basis. In addition, PPN 01/16 makes clear that the Council cannot exclude a supplier on the 
basis of the organisation’s country of origin. The PPN states:  

“Public procurement should never be used as a tool to boycott tenders from suppliers based in other 
countries, except where formal legal sanctions, embargoes and restrictions have been put in place by 
the UK Government. There are wider national and international consequences from imposing such 
local level boycotts. … it can also be unlawful and lead to severe penalties against the contracting 
authority and the Government.” 

 

2.11 The grounds for excluding a supplier from a procurement are set out in the Procurement Act 2023 in 
Schedules 6 (mandatory exclusions) and Schedule 7 (discretionary exclusions); these relate to the 
supplier itself and not a third party with which the supplier does business, is otherwise politically 
affiliated with or provides financial support to.  

2.12 Terminating a contract and / or excluding suppliers from a procurement exercise without a valid legal 
basis for doing so would expose a public authority to the risk of legal challenge, including: 

 Judicial Review: The organisation could challenge the decision on public law grounds through an 
action for judicial review; or 

 Breach of Contract Claims: If the termination is not supported by a contractual right to terminate, 
or there are no other legitimate grounds for termination, the Council could be liable to a claim for 
damages. 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendation 

 
3.1 The Council has considered the petitioners’ requests “to divest the Local Government Pension 

Scheme and end procurement contracts, with companies enabling Israel’s grave violations of 
Palestinian rights” together with the fiduciary duty upon Fund managers, the Fund’s investment 
strategy and relevant legal requirements in relation to contracts and procurement to formulate a 
response. 

3.2 The response is as set out within this report and therefore the Lead Member for Resources and 
Climate Change is recommended to advise the petitioners: 

(1) that the East Sussex Pension Fund has an agreed position regarding investments as detailed in 
Appendix 1; and 

(2) to note the limitations on the Council in respect of procurement and termination of contracts as 
set out in paragraphs 2.8 to 2.12 of this report.  

  

IAN GUTSELL 
Chief Finance Officer and 
 
ROS PARKER 
Chief Operating Officer 
 
 
Contact Officer:   Ian Gutsell, Chief Finance Officer 
Tel. No:    01273 481399 
Email:    ian.gutsell@eastsussex.gov.uk 

Page 9

mailto:ian.gutsell@eastsussex.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 
Local Member(s):  
All 
   
 
Background Documents 
East Sussex Pension Fund Investment Strategy Statement 
Funding Strategy Statement 
Petition submitted to the Chairman on 20 March 2025 

Page 10

https://www.eastsussexpensionfund.org/media/w5eb04uz/investment-strategy-statement-rebalancing-and-srip-2023.pdf
https://www.eastsussexpensionfund.org/media/x4lpeopm/funding-strategy-statement-revised-june-2023.pdf


 

East Sussex Pension Fund Statement on Israel and the Occupied Territories 

The East Sussex Pension Fund (the Fund) recognises that Environmental, Social and Corporate 

Governance (‘ESG’) issues can have a material impact on the long term performance of its 

investments. ESG issues can impact the Fund’s returns and reputation. Given this, the Fund is 

committed to an ongoing development of its ESG policy to ensure it reflects latest industry 

developments and regulations. 

Investors have a role in shaping and influencing company actions relating to human rights bringing 

the S of ESG into focus. Social performance of companies considers the operational impact on 

labour and other human rights issues of people and communities in which it engages. Currently 

metrics and transparency on social factors are less evident than factors such as environmental 

issues and can make traversing within social factors of ESG more difficult and less consistent. 

The Fund has a long-standing commitment to stewardship and active ownership. Reflecting this, the 

Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) confirms that the Fund has formally agreed to adhere to 

the Stewardship Code as published by the Financial Reporting Council and expects its investment 

managers to be signatories to, or to comply with, the Code.  The Fund has previously reported on 

the original 2012 Stewardship Code and will be reporting based on the more onerous 2020 

Stewardship Code in 2022.  Responsibility for day-to-day interaction with companies is delegated to 

the Fund’s investment managers, including the escalation of engagement when necessary. 

The Fund recognises that voting at AGMs, for example, by voting against reappointment of board 

members, or audit committees, against reappointment of auditors, co-filing shareholder proposals 

and through engagement by meeting with the board of directors or senior managers  can impact 

and drive change in companies and society and enables the Fund to be a responsible investor. 

The Fund seeks to work collaboratively with like-minded institutional shareholders in order to 

maximise the influence that it can have on individual companies. This is achieved in a variety of 

ways, including through the membership of the LAPFF (Local Authority Pension Fund Forum) and 

other engagement groups. Collective engagement gives the Fund greater leverage over a company 

due to the aggregation of holdings increasing the individual power and influence of investors in 

order to push for change. 

Following a number of questions on the Fund’s holdings by members of the Fund or other 

stakeholders, the Fund has assessed its exposure to companies flagged by United Nations Human 

Rights Office of the High Commissioner’s (“OHCHR”) A/HRC/37/39 Report, where there were 

grounds to conclude companies activities may enable and support the establishment, expansion and 

maintenance of Israeli residential communities within Palestinian territories.  

  

Page 11

Appendix 1



To support the review, the Fund has kept close links with LAPFF, who have been carrying out 

engagement on behalf of the member funds. LAPFF have been liaising with Palestinian and Jewish 

interest groups in respect of 16 companies operating in the occupied region where member funds 

have some investment. This includes all but one named company held within the Fund in March 

2022 and all those held at March 2021.  We are supportive of the LAPFF position on the occupied 

territories, which seeks to encourage companies operating in that jurisdiction to review and have 

regard for the human rights of all individuals with whom they interact in the conduct of their 

operations. In addition, the Fund has liaised with its investment managers who have exposure to a 

small number of companies on the OHCHR list to understand the risk to the value of the Fund of 

these holdings from a human rights perspective 

Investment decisions in late 2020 and early 2021 have moved the Funds equity holdings to 

investments that have exclusion polices and indexes aligned to opportunities around the climate 

challenge, resource efficiency and exclude UN Compact Violators. 

The Fund will continue to assess and review its exposure to underlying companies through its 

investment managers and look to identify emerging issues to ensure our investments are not 

complicit in any violations of human rights or international law, anywhere in the world.  

  

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 22 April 2025
	4 Petition - Divest from Israel and Stop Support for Genocide
	Appendix 1


